
 

 
Agenda No. 2011-11 June 06, 2011 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2011‐11 

REGULAR MEETING June 06, 2011 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 

PRELIMINARY MEETING 
 

I 6:00 PM Status of Property Clean-ups and Abatements 
 

 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
II 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 1 of 51



 

 
Agenda No. 2011-11 June 06, 2011 Page 2 of 3 

7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

b) The Fairbanks City Council, Sitting as a Committee of the Whole, will hear 
interested citizens concerned with the below-referenced Appeals of 
Denied Application for new Chauffeur License.  Public Testimony will 
be taken and limited to five (5) minutes.   

 
 i. Applicant: Jacob S. Bennett 

 
 ii. Applicant: Stephen T. Lee 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5848 – An Ordinance to Repeal Article VI of Chapter 14 
Pawnbrokers.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND 
PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
b) Ordinance No. 5849 – An Ordinance Amending FGC 82-1 to Prohibit the 

Addition of Fluoride in Community Water Systems.  Introduced by Mayor 
Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
c) Ordinance No. 5850 – An Ordinance Authorizing Conveyance of the J.P. 

Jones Community Development Center to the Interdenominational 
Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No. 4474 – A Resolution Fixing the rate of tax levy for 
municipal purposes for the 2011 real property tax of the City of Fairbanks, 
Alaska.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.   

 
*b) Ordinance No. 5851 – An Ordinance to Approve the Monetary Terms of 

the Arbitrator’s Opinion and Award in the Matter of the City of Fairbanks 
and the Public Safety Employees Association Local 803.  Introduced by 
Council Members Eberhart and Matherly.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

a) Committee Reports 
 
 
  

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 2 of 51



 

 
Agenda No. 2011-11 June 06, 2011 Page 3 of 3 

12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a) A Street Apartments Claim 
 
b) PSEA Negotiations 

 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 3 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 4 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 5 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 6 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 7 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 8 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 9 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 10 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 11 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 12 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 13 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 14 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 15 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 16 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 17 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 18 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 19 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 20 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 21 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 22 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 23 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 24 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 25 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 26 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 27 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 28 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 29 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 30 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 31 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 32 of 51



CONFID
ENTIA

L

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 33 of 51



Ordinance No. 5848 
Page 1 of 1 

 

Introduced by:  Mayor Cleworth 
Introduced:  May 23, 2011 

 
 
    ORDINANCE NO. 5848 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 14 

PAWNBROKERS 
 

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska enacted legislation relating to the registration 
and operation of pawnbrokers, the provisions of which take effect on July 1, 2011; and  
 

WHEREAS, that legislation specifically stated that any ordinance of a 
municipality related to the regulation of pawnbrokers that does not comply with the 
provisions of state law is void; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City currently only licenses two pawnbrokers under the 

provisions of FGC Sec. 14-211 – 14.221; and 
 
WHEREAS, state law now provides for uniform licensing and regulation of 

pawnbrokers throughout the state,  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Article VI of Chapter 14 of the Fairbanks General Code (Sections 14-211 
through 14-221) is hereby repealed.   

Section 2.   That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the 1st day of July 2011.     
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jerry Cleworth, Mayor  

 
AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT:   
ADOPTED:   
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk PAUL EWERS, City Attorney 
 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 34 of 51



     Introduced by:  Mayor Cleworth 
  Date: May 23, 2011   

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5849 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FGC 82-1 TO PROHIBIT THE 

ADDITION OF FLUORIDE TO COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEMS 
  

WHEREAS, City Code has required the addition of fluoride to the community 
water system since 1959; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response to questions about the benefits and risks of fluoride, the 
City Council created the Fairbanks Fluoride Task Force to study the issue and make 
recommendations; and    
 
 WHEREAS, the members of the Fluoride Task Force had advanced degrees and 
knowledge in the fields of chemistry, geochemistry, microbiology, medicine and 
dentistry; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after an exhaustive inquiry and over a year of public hearings, 
research and analysis, the Task Force issued a report with recommendations as 
follows:  
 

The Fairbanks Fluoride Task Force makes a set of four recommendations. We 
anticipate that the community’s focus will be on Recommendation #1, but as a 
committee we feel strongly that Recommendations 2, 3, and 4 should be implemented 
along with Recommendation #1 as part of a cohesive plan to address dental health 
issues in our community. 
 
1. Primarily because (1) the ground water used for Fairbanks public water 
contains an average of 0.3 ppm fluoride, and (2) higher concentrations of fluoride 
put non-nursing infants at risk, the task force recommends that supplemental 
fluoridation of the Fairbanks public water supply be terminated. The task force 
further recommends that the Fairbanks community be informed of possible 
dental health implications from not fluoridating the water. 
 
Rationale: Not fluoridating Fairbanks water will reduce the fluoride content from 0.7 
ppm to 0.3 ppm, which is the fluoride concentration of the raw water used by Golden 
Heart Utilities (GHU). This will reduce, but not eliminate, the risk of significant incidence 
and severity of fluorosis, especially fluorosis associated with the use of GHU water to 
prepare infant formula.  Doing so will also address ethical concerns raised during the 
task force’s public testimony. However, the effect of this reduction in fluoride 
concentration on the caries rate in the Fairbanks community, while most likely small, is 
unknown and unpredictable. Those who depend on 0.7 ppm fluoride in tap water for 
their dental health need to be informed of the possible adverse consequences to their 
dental health caused by reducing the fluoride content of Fairbanks tap water from 0.7 
ppm to 0.3 ppm and of the measures that can be taken to address these possible 
adverse consequences. 
 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 35 of 51



Ordinance No. 5849 
Page 2 

The task force has made this recommendation to terminate fluoridation of GHU water 
with full knowledge of and respect for the positions of the American Dental Association 
(ADA), the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC; part of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services), the World Health Organization, and the 
Alaska Department of Public Health in support of fluoridation of public water supplies. 
While the task force members agree that water fluoridation may be an important 
element of an effective dental health program in many communities, the majority of 
members are not convinced that it is necessary in Fairbanks because of the fluoride 
content of the city’s ground water and the alternate sources of fluoride available in the 
community. 
 
Five task force members, with various degrees of conviction, support this 
recommendation, while one member (Dr. Taylor) supports continuing fluoridation at 0.7 
ppm. 
 
2. The Fairbanks City Council’s decision-making process on fluoridation should 
involve representatives of the Fairbanks North Star Borough government. 
 
Rationale: At least 25% of area residents who receive GHU water reside outside the 
city limits. 
 
3. Local dentists and physicians should be encouraged to provide their patients 
with up-to-date information on the benefits and risks associated with fluoride. 
 
Rationale: If nothing else, the recent notice that the secretary of the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services has proposed a new recommendation on fluoridation of 
public water supplies indicates that the citizenry should be informed about the state of 
contemporary research findings and analysis related to the role of fluoride in dental 
health. All of the members of the task force went into this project with incomplete and in 
some cases incorrect information about the issue. We suspect that we are not unique 
in that respect. 
 
4. The Fairbanks City Council should encourage the local school system to 
review and modify, as appropriate, its approach to promoting good dental health 
practices. 
 
Rationale: The local schools have an excellent opportunity to help all families in the 
community to learn about and to implement good dental health practices, which can 
include optional opportunities at school for topical fluoride treatment (in the form of 
rinses and tooth brushing, for example) as well as techniques for minimizing 
unnecessary and/or unwanted exposure to fluoride. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Fairbanks North Star Borough Assembly has been notified of the 
Task Force report. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Fairbanks General Code Sections 82-1 is amended as follows (new text in 
underlined bold font, deleted text in strikeout font): 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 36 of 51



Ordinance No. 5849 
Page 3 

Sec. 82-1.  City Community water systems fluoridated. 
 
A source of fluoride ion, approved by the state department of health, shall be added to 
the water supply of the city under the rules and regulations of the state department of 
health, such addition to be administered by Golden Heart Utilities, Inc. in a manner 
approved by the environmental coordinator of the city 
 

a.  Water utilities that own or operate community water distribution systems 
in the City shall not add fluoride, in any form, to the water system.   

b. The operators of community water distribution systems within the City of 
Fairbanks shall provide a copy of the annual water quality report, called the 
Consumer Confidence Report, to the City.  The report shall be filed with the 
City Clerk and available for public inspection.      

 
Section 2. A display advertisement shall be published providing information about the 
Fluoride Task Force recommendations, including information about where a full copy of 
the report can be obtained.  In addition, information shall be sent to the Fairbanks North 
Star Borough School District.  
 
Section 3. The City recognizes that the Golden Heart Utilities, the operator of the 
community water system providing water in the City, will need regulatory approval from 
the State of Alaska for the water treatment process changes before discontinuing 
fluoridation.  It is expected that this approval can be obtained by the end of 2011.  
Therefore, while GHU is encouraged to implement the change as soon as possible, this 
ordinance shall be effective the 1st day of January 2012. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTION:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk  Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 37 of 51



Ordinance No. 5850 
Page 1 of 2 

      Introduced By:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
           Date:  May 23, 2011 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5850 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF THE J.P. JONES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CENTER TO THE 
INTERDENOMINATIONAL MINISTERIAL ALLIANCE OF FAIRBANKS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is owner of the land and building located at 
2400 Rickert Street, known as the J.P. Jones Community Development Center, situated 
on the Ease ½, Block 32, Bjerremark Subdivision, as shown on attached “Exhibit A”, 
and;  
 
 WHEREAS, said property has historically required management, maintenance 
and repair by the City with no offsetting lease revenues; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to divest facilities which are not part of the City’s 
core mission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the facility has been leased to the Interdenominational Ministerial 
Alliance of Fairbanks since June, 1985, which lease expires January 31, 2014; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks has 
expressed a desire to assume ownership of the land and building; and   
 

WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code of Ordinances Section 70-44 provides that 
the City may sell, donate or exchange with the United States, the state, any political 
subdivision, or a nonprofit organization, city-owned real property without a public sale 
and for less than the fair market value, whenever in the judgment of the City Council it is 
advantageous to the City to make the conveyance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the finding of the City Council that the J.P. Jones Community 
Development Center shall be conveyed to the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of 
Fairbanks, subject to certain conditions. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

 SECTION 1. That the City Attorney is directed to prepare a 
Warranty Deed from the City of Fairbanks to the Interdenominational 
Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks for purposes stated above.   
 
 SECTION 2. That said Warranty Deed shall restrict the use of the 
property to community services, events and programs primarily for the 
benefit of the south Fairbanks community; that the facility shall be 
operated on a non-profit basis and shall not be sold without the prior 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 38 of 51



Ordinance No. 5850 
Page 2 of 2 

approval of the City Council, and shall be operated in a manner that 
encourages equal opportunity use within the community, in perpetuity.    
 
 SECTION 3.  That the guidelines and requirements of the Transfer 
Agreement attached as “Exhibit A” are hereby approved for these 
purposes. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute said Deed on behalf of the City, and the City Clerk is authorized 
to attest and affix the City Seal to said instrument, the execution of which 
shall take place not less than thirty (30) days after the effective date of this 
ordinance, as prescribed by section 8.3 of the City Charter and Sec. 7-56 
of the Fairbanks General Code. 

 
 SECTION 5.  That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the 
11th day of June, 2011. 

 
 
 
                                                                              
        JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                           
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk  PAUL EWERS, City Attorney 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 39 of 51



EXHIBIT “A” TO ORDINANCE No. 5850 
 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF THE 
J.P. JONES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

 
FROM THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
 

TO THE 
INTERDENOMINATIONAL MINISTERIAL ALLIANCE OF FAIRBANKS, 

ALASKA 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to divest itself of facilities which are not part of the City’s 
core mission, and which draw upon City resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks (the “IMA”) has 
leased the J.P. Jones Community Development Center from the City since 1985, and is 
familiar with use and operation of the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IMA has expressed its desire to assume ownership of said facility, 
including land and building; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, by Ordinance 5850, with effective date of June 11th, 2011, 
has authorized conveyance the facility to the IMA, subject to certain conditions.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City of Fairbanks (“City”) and the IMA hereby agree to the 
following conditions of transfer: 
 

a. Conveyance of the property will be made by Warranty Deed, which will contain 
the use conditions stated in Ordinance 5850. 
 

b. Time of conveyance:  The City will issue the deed to the property as soon as 
practical upon expenditure of remaining grant funds, but not later than December 
31, 2011.  
 

c. Existing grant funds.  Two funding sources are available for further improvements 
to the facility.   
 
1. HUD grant funds in the approximate balance of $80,543 
2. Energy grant funds in approximate balance of $5,100 

 

CITY OF 

FAIRBANKS

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 40 of 51



 2

These grant funds are obligated to the City and cannot be transferred to the IMA.  
Therefore, the City, in cooperation with the IMA, shall identify improvements to 
the facility, administer and construct the improvements, and expend the grant 
funds to the extent practical before transfer of the property.  
 

d. Enterprise Fund:  The City holds a cash account for the benefit of the J.P. Jones 
Community Development Center in the approximate balance of $137,282.  These 
funds will be transferred to the IMA upon conveyance of the facility.  
 

e. The City will turn over any keys or key cards in its possession, together with such 
documents and information related to the facility available. 
 

f. The City will provide technical support and training to the IMA for facility systems 
prior to the conveyance.  
 

g. Transfer of the property shall be “as-is, where is”, as exists on the date of 
conveyance.  
 

h. After transfer is complete, the IMA shall assume all responsibility and liability for 
ownership and operation of the facility, without further assistance from the City, 
and without limitation.  
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the 
date shown below.  
 
 
Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance   City of Fairbanks 
 
 
_________________________    __________________________ 
By:          By:  Jerry Cleworth 
Title:         Title:  Mayor 
Date:         Date:      

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 41 of 51



Ordinance No. 5850, As Amended 
Page 1 of 2 

      Introduced By:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
           Date:  May 23, 2011 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5850, As Amended 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF THE J.P. JONES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CENTER TO THE 
INTERDENOMINATIONAL MINISTERIAL ALLIANCE OF FAIRBANKS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks is owner of the land and building located at 
2400 Rickert Street, known as the J.P. Jones Community Development Center, situated 
on the Ease ½, Block 32, Bjerremark Subdivision, as shown on attached “Exhibit A”, 
and;  
 
 WHEREAS, said property has historically required management, maintenance 
and repair by the City with no offsetting lease revenues; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to divest facilities which are not part of the City’s 
core mission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the facility has been leased to the Interdenominational Ministerial 
Alliance of Fairbanks since June, 1985, which lease expires January 31, 2014; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks has 
expressed a desire to assume ownership of the land and building; and   
 

WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code of Ordinances Section 70-44 provides that 
the City may sell, donate or exchange with the United States, the state, any political 
subdivision, or a nonprofit organization, city-owned real property without a public sale 
and for less than the fair market value, whenever in the judgment of the City Council it is 
advantageous to the City to make the conveyance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the finding of the City Council that the J.P. Jones Community 
Development Center shall be conveyed to the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of 
Fairbanks, subject to certain conditions. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
  

 SECTION 1. That the City Attorney is directed to prepare a 
Warranty Deed from the City of Fairbanks to the Interdenominational 
Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks for purposes stated above.   
 
 SECTION 2. That said Warranty Deed shall restrict the use of the 
property to community services, events and programs primarily for the 
benefit of the south Fairbanks community; that the facility shall be 
operated on a non-profit basis and shall not be sold without the prior 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 42 of 51



Ordinance No. 5850, As Amended 
Page 2 of 2 

approval of the City Council, and shall be operated in a manner that 
encourages equal opportunity use within the community, in perpetuity.    
 
 SECTION 3.  That the guidelines and requirements of the Transfer 
Agreement attached as “Exhibit A” are hereby approved for these 
purposes. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute said Deed on behalf of the City, and the City Clerk is authorized 
to attest and affix the City Seal to said instrument, the execution of which 
shall take place not less than thirty (30) days after the effective date of this 
ordinance, as prescribed by section 8.3 of the City Charter and Sec. 7-56 
of the Fairbanks General Code. 

 
 SECTION 5.  That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the 
11th day of June, 2011. 

 
 
 
                                                                              
        JERRY CLEWORTH, Mayor 
 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                           
JANEY HOVENDEN, CMC, City Clerk  PAUL EWERS, City Attorney 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 43 of 51



AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 44 of 51



EXHIBIT “B” TO ORDINANCE No. 5850 
 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFER OF THE 
J.P. JONES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CENTER 

 
FROM THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
 

TO THE 
INTERDENOMINATIONAL MINISTERIAL ALLIANCE OF FAIRBANKS, 

ALASKA 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to divest itself of facilities which are not part of the City’s 
core mission, and which draw upon City resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance of Fairbanks (the “IMA”) has 
leased the J.P. Jones Community Development Center from the City since 1985, and is 
familiar with use and operation of the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IMA has expressed its desire to assume ownership of said facility, 
including land and building; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, by Ordinance 5850, with effective date of June 11th, 2011, 
has authorized conveyance the facility to the IMA, subject to certain conditions.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City of Fairbanks (“City”) and the IMA hereby agree to the 
following conditions of transfer: 
 

a. Conveyance of the property will be made by Warranty Deed, which will contain 
the use conditions stated in Ordinance 5850, specifically, that use of the property 
shall be for community services, events and programs primarily for the benefit of 
the south Fairbanks community, that the facility be operated on a non-profit basis 
and in a manner that encourages equal opportunity use with the community, and 
that the property not be sold without the prior approval of the City Council. 
 

b. Time of conveyance:  The City will issue the deed to the property as soon as 
practical upon expenditure of remaining grant funds and closure of the grant. 
 

c. Existing funds.  Two funding sources are available for further improvements to 
the facility.   
 

CITY OF 

FAIRBANKS

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 45 of 51



 2

1. State grant funds in balance of $80,543 
2. Energy grant funds in approximate balance of $5,100 

 
These grant funds are obligated to the City and cannot be transferred to the IMA.  
Therefore, the City, in cooperation with the IMA, shall identify improvements to 
the facility, administer and construct the improvements, and expend the funds 
before transfer of the property.  
 

d. Enterprise Fund:  The City holds a cash account for the benefit of the J.P. Jones 
Community Development Center in the approximate balance of $137,282.  These 
funds will be transferred to the IMA upon conveyance of the facility. 
  

e. The City will turn over any keys or key cards in its possession, together with such 
documents and information related to the facility available. 
 

f. Transfer of the property shall be “as-is, where is”.  
 

g. After transfer is complete, the IMA shall assume all responsibility and liability for 
ownership and operation of the facility and will operate and maintain the facility 
for the practical life of the building and will not look to the City of Fairbanks or the 
State of Alaska to operate or maintain the facility or pay for its operation or 
maintenance. 
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals on the 
date shown below.  
 
 
Interdenominational Ministerial Alliance   City of Fairbanks 
 
 
_________________________    __________________________ 
By:          By:  Jerry Cleworth 
Title:         Title:  Mayor 
Date:         Date:      

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 46 of 51



  Introduced by:  Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
 Finance Committee: June 1, 2011 
 Date:  June 6, 2011 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4474 
 

A RESOLUTION FIXING THE RATE OF TAX LEVY FOR 
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES FOR THE 2011 REAL PROPERTY 

TAX OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA. 
 

WHEREAS, the real property assessment rolls have been completed and the 

Fairbanks North Star Borough Assessor’s Office has advised the City Mayor that the net 

taxable value of real property as defined by AS 29.71.800 within the City of Fairbanks, 

Alaska, is estimated at  $2,412,601,885. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 

 
Section 1.    That the rate of levy on the net assessed value of taxable real 

property is hereby fixed at 5.843 mills for municipal purposes within the City of 

Fairbanks.  The 5.843 mill rate as provided in Fairbanks Charter Section 6.5 is 

comprised of three parts:  

 

General Fund Expenditures: 4.900 mills 

Police Station Bond Payments: 0.288 mills 

Claims & Judgments: 0.655 mills 

 

Section 2. That taxes levied hereby are due, delinquent and subject to 

penalties and interest as provided by FGC Chapter 74, Article II, City of Fairbanks, 

Alaska. 

 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 47 of 51



Resolution 4474 
Page 2 of 2 

Section 3. Taxes in any given year may be paid in two equal installments. 

The first half of taxes thus levied shall be due on the first day of September in the 

year in which the taxes are levied and are delinquent if not paid prior to the close of 

business on that day.  The second half of taxes thus levied shall be due on the first 

day of November in the year in which the taxes are levied and are delinquent if not 

paid prior to the close of business on that day. 

 
Section 4. The sections, paragraphs, sentences and clauses and phrases of this 

Resolution are severable.  Should any part of this Resolution be declared unconstitutional 

or otherwise unlawful by a valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality or unlawfulness shall not affect any of the remaining sections, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs and phrases of this Resolution.  

 
Passed and Approved this ______ day of June, 2011. 

 
 

___________________________ 
Jerry Cleworth,  
CITY MAYOR 

 
 

AYES:    
NAYS:   
ABSENT 
APPROVED:   
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk   Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 48 of 51



City of Fairbanks PREPARED 05/31/2011
Property Tax Computation for Mill Levy

City Charter Sec. 6.6 A. Formula for the computation of the maximum allowable tax is: (A-B)+D+F=G

2010 2011
A Total Amount of City Tax Levied in Prior Year 17,129,154$                   18,623,562$                 19,008,513       

384,951            
B Equals the amount of the actual payment of principal and interest 18,623,562      

on bonds made in prior year 696,530                          692,880                        
Amount levied for judgments in prior year 1,530,070                       1,493,193                     

(A-B) 14,902,554                     16,437,489                   

D The percentage change in the CPI-U for Anchorage, AK during prior year
multiplied by the net taxes levied in prior year. 1.20% 1.80%

178,831                          295,875                        

F The total amount of all exclusions under City of Fairbanks Charter
* 3,927,128                       2,743,171                     

G Total taxes calculated: G=(A-B)+D+F   19,008,513 19,476,535
Current Year Hotel/Motel Tax Budgeted 2,233,308 2,233,308
Current Year Alcohol Tax Budgeted 1,620,000 1,900,000
Current Year Tobacco Tax Budgeted 725,000 850,000
Total other taxes allowed by tax cap: 14,430,205 14,493,227
FGC Sec. 74-35 Surplus which exceeds 2% of prior year Revenue Cap -                                      -                                    

14,430,205                   14,493,227                 

Total net taxable value of Land and Improvements 2,420,240,995$             2,412,601,885$           

2010 2011
Calculated mill levy 5.962 6.007

Amount for Bonds, Judgements and Claims Mitigation Insurance   0.903 2,186,073$                     2,274,507$                   0.943
4.9 mills allowed by Charter change    4.900  11,859,181 11,821,749 4.900  

2010/2011 Property tax   5.803 14,045,254$                   14,096,256$                 5.843

Other Taxes that can be levied 0.159 $384,951 $396,971 0.164

Allowed by Charter 4.900                            
Police Station Bonds 0.288                            

Judgments 0.655                            
Other taxes that can be levied 0.164                            

Calculated mill levy 6.007                           

* Calculation of F:  The total amount of all exclusions under City of Fairbanks Charter
section 6.5(B).

f.1 The taxes on new construction or property improvements equals the projected tax revenue
from the value of that new construction or property improvements, computed by multiplying
the tax rate applied to properties in the City during the current fiscal year by the assessed
value of the new construction and property improvements:

New construction & improvements from Bldg Dept & Annexation:   80,762,443     48,372,142.00$                       Building Department
Year 2010 mill rate:   5.803 32,390,301.00                         Annexation

468,664 80,762,443.00$                       

f.2 The principal and interest due in the next fiscal year on bonds: 695,380
f.3 Taxes to provide additional voter-approved services: 0
f.4 Taxes for new judgments & claims mitigation insurance: 1,579,127
f.5 Special appropriations necessary on an emergency basis: 0
f.6 Any taxes approved by the voters: 0

2,743,171 *

19,008,513  Allowed 2010
384,951       Lost revenue

18,623,562  Levied in prior year

U:\RESOLUTIONS\RESOLUTIONS - 2011\[Resolution 4474 Mill Levy Attachement.xlsx]Mill Levy

2011 Mill Levy Break Down

PAGE 1

6/1/201111:38 AMMill Levy

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 49 of 51



      Introduced by: Council Member Eberhart 
         Council Member Matherly   

     Date: June 6, 2011   
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5851   
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE MONETARY TERMS OF THE 
ARBITRATOR’S OPINION AND AWARD IN THE MATTER OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS AND THE PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES 

ASSOCIATION LOCAL 803 
 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Public Safety Employees Association Local 803 

were signatories to a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) that expired in December 

of 2008; and  

WHEREAS, through negotiations the parties were able to agree upon numerous 

terms of the replacement CBA; and 

WHEREAS, the parties were not able to agree upon all terms, and pursuant to 

the terms of the CBA, the parties submitted the matter to binding arbitration held before 

Arbitrator Alan Krebs on October 18, 19, and 20, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the arbitrator issued an Opinion and Award on January 24, 2011; 

and  

WHEREAS, the monetary terms of the arbitrator’s Opinion and Award are 

subject to funding by the Council pursuant to AS 23.40.215(a); and 

WHEREAS, funding of the monetary terms requires Council approval and 

amendment of the 2011 City budget to fund the awarded increases for 2011; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   

 Section 1. That the monetary terms of the arbitrator’s Opinion and Award, as 
set out below, are hereby approved, and the 2011 City budget shall be amended to 
reflect these changes:   
 
 WAGES:   
 
  3.5% increase to base wages (effective 7/1/10) 
  2.5% increase to base wages (effective 7/1/11) 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 50 of 51



Ordinance No. 5851 
Page 2 

 
 HEALTH BENEFITS: 
 

$150.00 increase to the monthly health insurance premium  
(effective 1/1/11) 

   
 
Section 2. That the effective date of this ordinance shall be the __ day of 

____________, 2011.   

 

             
      Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - JUNE 06, 2011 Page 51 of 51


	AGENDA - June 6, 2011
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Chauffeur Appeal - Bennett
	Chauffeur Appeal - Lee

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5848
	Ordinance No. 5849
	Ordinance No. 5850
	Ordinance No. 5850, As Amended (Proposed)

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4474
	Ordinance No. 5851




